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lndependent Auditor's Report

Ringgold School District
New Eagle, Pennsylvania
Ladies and Gentlemen:

Report on the FinancialStatements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Ringgold
School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 20L5, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Monagement's Responsibility for the Financiol Stotements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Aud ito r's

Re spo n si bi

lity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts

and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
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assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School
District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control. AccordinglY, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

ln making those risk

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
Opinions
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Ringgold School District as of June 30, 2015
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Motters
Req ui re d Su ppl

e

me nta

ry I nform ation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis on Pages i through xi be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Ringgold School District's basic financial statements. The statement of
changes in assets and liabilities - agency funds is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stotes, Locol Governments, and Non-Profit Orgonizations, and
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The statement of changes in assets and liabilities - agency funds and the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. ln our opinion, the statement of changes in assets and liabilities - agency funds and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with 6overnment Auditing

we have also issued our report

dated
November 25,2015, on our consideration of Ringgold School District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stondords
in considering Ringgold School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Standards,
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November 25,2015

Ma nagement's Discussion

& Analysis

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of Ringgold School District's financial

performance provides an executive summary of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015. The purpose is to look at the School District's financial performance as a
whole and to enhance the understanding of the School District's overall finances. lt is recommended
that one should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and the financial statements to
accomplish this goal.
The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model adopted by

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments issued
June '1999. The GASB Statement No. 34 is the biggest change in the history of public-sector
accounting.

The Basic Structure of the Governmental Reporting Model

.

Required Supplementary lnformation (RSl)
* Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

.

Basic Financial Statements (Audited)
" Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

" Fund Financial Statements
- Governmental Fund Statements
- Proprietary Fund Statements
- Fiduciary Fund Statements

* Notes to the Financial Statements

.

Other Required Supplementary lnformation (RSI)

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The Government-Wide Financial Statements report information of the School District as a whole
using private-sector accounting (accrual basis of accounting). The Statement of Net Position
includes all the assets and liabilities of the government. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities (whether or not it is received/paid).

The two GovernmentWide Financial Statements report the School District's net position and
their variances. Net position, which is the School District's assets plus deferred outflows of
resources less liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources, is one way to measure the School
District's financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the School District's net
position is an indication of an improving or deteriorating financial position.
To assess the overall financial health of the School District, consider also changes in the School
District's property taxes and student performance.
I

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Cont'd)

The Government-Wide Financial Statements of the School District are divided into two
categories:

.

Governmental Activities: All of the School District's basic services are included here, such as
instruction, administration and community services which are financed by property taxes,
state and federal subsidies and grants.

.

Business Type Activities: These services are provided on a fee for goods or services basis to
recover all or most of the expenses related to the activity. The School District's food service
is reported here.

Fund Financial Statements
The School District's Fund Financial Statements provide detail about the most important funds
and not the School District as a whole.

.

Governmental Funds
Most of the School District's activities are repofted in governmental funds, which show how
cash flows in and out of funds and balances remaining at the end of the year that are
available for future spending. These funds are accounted for by "modified accrual
accounting", measuring cash and other assets that can be liquidated to cash. The
Governmental Fund Statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School District's
general government operations and its provision of basic services. Governmental fund
information helps you determine if there are more or less financial resources available to
spend in the near future. The difference and likeness of governmental activities (see the
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) and governmental funds are
reconciled in the basic financial statements.

.

Proprietary Funds
The Food Service Fund is the School District's proprietary fund and operates mainly from
user charges and subsidies. The Retirement Obligations Fund accounts for funds
accumulated to provide for payment of post retirement insurance benefits. These funds are
used to account for School District activities similar to business operations in the private
sector.

These funds use the accrual basis of accounting, the same as on the Government-Wide
Financial Statements and therefore the statements will, for the most part, match the business
type activities part of the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

.

Fiduciary Funds
The School District is the trustee/fiduciary for the activity fund. All of these activities are
reported in separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds. The District also
maintains a bond escrow fund to account for unclaimed bond proceeds that are due back to
the bondholders. We exclude these activities from the School District's other financial
statements because the assets cannot be used to finance its operations.

Ringgold School District

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Statement oI Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Business-Type Activities

Governmental Activities
2074

Tota

2014

2015

2074

2015

2015

ASSETS

Current Agsets

2L,967,629

40,831,776 s

Non-Current Assets

44,O99,977

45,76t,853

2,067,465 s
213,t72

23,869,875

42,899,241

44,354,098

45,974,965
3,542,887

3,542,a87

Deferred Outflows
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

7,902,246 s
254,tzt

55,057,605 s

s2,L56,357

90,136,515

s2,28,,s77

s

98,930

s

68,223,973 s

92,4t7,O93

5,746,693 s

5,685,118
704,988,974
4,123,580

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Long-Term Uabilities

5,639,184 s
38,155,038

43,795,222 s

107,509

s

38,156,038
18,524

18,580

18,524

4,105,000

Deferred lnflows
Total Liabilities and Deferred lnflows

5,585,188 s
104,988,974

L1.4,680,762

126,033

s

117,510

s

254,t2t

s

2r3)rz

s

41,92t,2s5

s

t74,797,672

Net Position
lnvested in Capital Assets
(Net of Related Debt)

7,625,s39 s

a,838,977 s

2,A29,670

4,036,296

7,879,550 s

9,052,089

2,429,670

4,036,295

Restricted for:
Capital Projests

-

Retirement ObliBations
Other Reserves
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

8,438,635
3,378,540

1,350,304

7,450,463

1,350,304

1,450,453

9,t59,473

499,492

8,438,535
3,822,973

9,L59,473

146,s78,3921

444,433

22,272,384 s

(24.s43,6461

s

2,048,8s8

s

2,t63,o67

s

24,327,242 s

(22,38O,s79],

56,067,6ffi s

90,136,515

S

2,174,891

S

2,2AO,577

5

68,242,497 $

92,4L7,O93

TOTAL TIABII-ITIES, DEFERRED
INFTOWS, AND NET POSITION

(45,078,900)

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015
Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2015
The Statement of Changes in Net Position below shows if net position has increased or decreased over the year. The School District's assets have increased

over the year.

Governmenta I Activities

Busi ness-Type

2014

20r.5

201.4

Activities
20L5

Total

20L4

20L5

REVENUES

Program Revenues
Charges for Services

s

Operating Grants & Contributions

Total Program Revenues

68,557

s

255,894

5

424,644

s

367,436

S

493,201

$

623,330

8,533,868

9,339,277

S 9,027,069 S

9,962,60-l

7,494,034

8,129,051

1,039,834

L,2L0,226

57,s62,s91

S8,384,94s

51,,464,418

51-,57-t,662

15,001,240

5 L5,5L9,764

4,276,7L4

4,502,2O1

t3,584,7L6

8,t24

13,576,909
89,560

100,107

- S 15,001,240
4,276,'71,4
- t3,584,7L6
L32,974 108,231

32,870,794

33,688,434

100,107

132,974

General Revenues
Property Taxes, General Purposes (net)

S

Other Taxes, General Purposes (net)
Grants, Subsidies, & Contributions (NR)

Other

Total General Revenues

Total Revenues

540,433,385 542,o73,379

S1,564,585

5 L5,5L9,764
4,5O2,2OL

13,576,9O9

222,534

32,970,90t

51,710,636 547,997,97o

33,821_,408

543,784,01.5

EXPENSES

Program Expenses

$

2L,7s2,483

S 21,587,169

5 2t,7s2,483

5 2L,s87,t69

lnstructional Student Support

1,,886,077

1,856,533

1,886,077

1,856,533

Admin. and Financial Support Svcs.

3,544,9t2
4,Stt,404

3,967,9L5
4,206,432

3,544,9L2

Operation and Maint. of Plant Services

3,967,9L5
4,206,432

Pupil Transportation

2,996,827

2,928,572

789,285

18,567

794,640
22,529

1,554,863

794,640
22,529
L,4t8,567

1,554,863

L,4L9,567

SZL,O37

569,052

52L,O37

559,052
L,596,427

I

nstruction

Student Activities
Com munity Services

Debt Services
Unallocated Deprecation Expense

L8,557

4,SLL,404
2,996,827

789,285

Total Expenses
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

1,596,421

L,547,926

Food Services

S 3l,sls,qss
S2,857,930

S

37,351-,409
s4,72t,97O

5

L,547,926
$16,659

S

L,596,427
S114,209

L,547,926
S

2,929,572

39,123,381 S 38,947,836

$2,814,589

54,836,179

V

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015
Governmental Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2015
The Statement of Activities shows program service expenses and charges for services and grants offsetting the same services. The table below reflects cost

of

program services and the net cost of those services after considering the program revenues for the governmental activities. General revenues including tax
revenue, investment income and unrestricted state entitlements must support the net cost of the School District's programs.

Net Cost of Services

Program Revenues

Total Cost of Services
2075
2014

2074

20L4

2015

2015

FUNCTIONS AND PROGRAMS

Programs
I

nstruction

5

lnstructional Student Support

21,752,483
t,886,O77

Tota! Governmental Activities

$

5,226,957
329,555
305,902

225,559

2,996,827

7,855,225

-189,285

-194,640

84,987

467,773
L,736,689
715,652

4,51t,4O4

Debt Services (Principal & lnterest)

4,8L1,680 s
279,42'1

3,544,912

Community Services

s

1,856,533

Operation and Maint. Of Plant Svcs.

Student Activities

2L,587,769
3,967,915
4,206,432
2,928,572

Admin. And Financial Support Svcs.

Pupil Transportation

5

199,559

18,567

22,529

5,770

8,947

3,242,75L

3,246,7OO

1,787,672

2,O27,603

38,74t,7O6

s

38,610,490

s

9,249,879

s

LO,2L3,O78

S 16,940,803

5

L6,360,2t2

1,606,650

7,526,978

3,319,353
4,311,845

3,662,073
3,738,659

1_,t41,602

1,191,993

704,298

t2,797

678,988
L3,582

1,454,4'79

1,,225,O97

5

29,491,827

S

28,397AL2

s

(13,584,716)

s

(13,576,909)

S

15,907,111

S

1q820,503

LESS

Unrestricted Grants, Subsidies, and Contributions

TOTAL NEEDS FROM LOCALTAXES & OTHER REVENUES

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015

Business-Type Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2015
total change in net position for the food service fund was S14,050.

The

Total Cost of Services
FUNCTIONS

Program Revenues

Net Cost of Services

& PROGRAMS

Programs

(7,7O9)

1,599,719

7,596,427

Food Service
LESS

lnterest lncome
Transfer

2L,759

Total General Revenues & Transfers

21,759

s

TOTAL CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION

- BEGINNING OF

14,050

698,554

FISCAL YEAR

Prior Year Adjustment

S

NET POSITION - END OF FISCAL YEAR

-t12,604

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

lncrease (Decrease)

June 30, 2014
GENERAL FUND

4,325,L17

DEBT SERVICE FUND

8,438,635

s

55,00L

June 30, 2015

4,39O,712

720,939

9,t59,473

CONSTRUCTION FUND

3,113,'131,

18,150,089

COMMITED INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

1,350,304

100,159

21,263,820
7,450,463

698,554

14,050

7!2,604

19,o4o,L37

36,966,472

CAFETERIA FUND

TOTAL

1-1,926,335

S

OUTSTANDING DEBT

The outstanding debt was increasedby 577,712,936.
lncrease (Decrease)
June 30, 2014

General Obligation Bonds
Capital lmprovement Bonds

-s

June 30, 2015

36,758,499

17,391,,901

54,150,400

1,,397,539

321,035

L,719,574

38,156,038

7t,772,936

55,868,974

Leases Payable

Retirement Obligations
Total

vi

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015
The table below compares the School District's original budget to actual expenditures and shows

whether we were over or under the original budgeted ammount.
Original Budget

MAJOR FUNCTION LEVEL

(Over) & Under Budget

Actual Expenditures

1OOO INSTRUCTION

1100 Regular Programs
1200 Special and Gifted Education
1300 Vocational Education
1400 Other lnstruction Programs

S

rs,753,4i8

s

15,629,535

124,933

4,825,955
7,299,379

4,694,732

t41,,223

t,log,t2L

t81_,257

653,578

4gg,g12

164,766

18,584

(18,584)

1500 Non-Public School Programs
TOTAL 1OOO FUNCTION

22,522,379

2L,928,784

593,595

7,772,554

L,O47,737

64,823

650,002

593,636

56,366

2OOO SUPPORT SERVICES

2100 Pupil Personnel
2200 lnstructional Staff

2,670,062

2,505,903

164,t59

2400 Pupil Health

363,202

302,707

60,495

2500 Business

643,462

6to,87L

32,59L

2600 Operation and Maint. Plant

4,380,O32

4,494,202

(L74,L7Ol

2700 Student Transportation

2,881,074
530,245

2,774,92L

106,153

510,861

19,384

35,000

3L,486

3,51,4

l-3,265,633

!2,872,379

393,315

903,765

790,001

73,764

13,000

22,529

(9,529)

8!6,765

812,530

4,235

2300 Administration

2800 Central
2900 Other Support Services
TOTAL 2OOO FUNCTION

3OOO NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

3200 Student Activities
3300 Community Services
TOTAL 3OOO FUNCTION

4OOO

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

4100 Site Acq & lmprov
4600 Commun ity Services
TOTAL 4OOO FUNCTION

5OOO OTHER

-s

-s

-s

-s

FINANCING USES

5100 Debt Service
520O Fund Transfers

3,605,000

3,246,7OO

358,300

75O,OO0

3,37]-,759

(2,621,,7591

4,355,000

6,618,459

(2,263,4591

42,232,091_

(7,272,314)

5900 Budgetary Reserve
TOTAL 5OOO FUNCTION

GENERAL FUND TOTATS

40,959,777

s

vii

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015
The table below compares the School District's original budget to actual expentidures at the object level and shows

whether we were over or under the original budgeted amount.
Original Budget

Actual Expenditures

(Over) & Under Budget

EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT
100 Personal Services -

Salaries

200 Personal Scvs. - Employee Benefits

300 Purchased Professional Svcs.
400 Purchased Property Services
500 Other Purchased Services

S

16,968,402
70,604,477

L,732,455
9L8,470
4,039,L64
L,903,424
336,410

s

16,477,327
9,626,069
2,L53,347

97g,40g
1420,8921

(35,503)

3,786,937

252,227
15,099
(296,572l,
(2,579,294l,
(L,272,3141

800 Other Objects

1,,136,975

900 Other Financing Uses

3,320,000
40,959,777

42,232,09L

700 Property

+9t,o75

954,O73

L,ggg,326
632,982
874,746
5,838,284

600 Supplies

s

262,229

As the graph below illustrates, the largest portions of general fund (Actual) expenditures are forsalaries and fringe benefits.

The School Dlstrict is a service entity and is labor intensive.

I

900 Other Financing Uses
Other

I

2,000,000 4,000,000 6,000,000 8,000,000 L0,000,000 12,000,000 14,000,000 L6,000,000

18,000,000

vilt

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2015

The table below compares the School District's original budget to actual revenues and shows

whether they were over on under budget.

Original Budget

Actual Revenues

(Over) & Under Budget

REVENUES
Local Sources

19,658,627

20,923,678

State Sources

20,303,596

20,467,0\6

Federal Sources

897,560

804,686

Other Financing Sources

100,000

97,712

40,959,777

42,287,092

TOTAL REVENUES

As

s

(t,255,O57],
(157,4201

92,974
2,299

s

(L,327,3L5],

the pie graph below illustrates, the largest portion of general fund revenues are from local and state sources.

Actual Revenues by Source
General Fund
June 2Ot5

Federal Sources
2%

Other Financing
Sources
<L%

tx

Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

Thevarianceanalysisbelowcomparesactual (2073-2014l' expenditurestoactual(2014-2015)expendituresfortheGeneral
Fund and depicts if they have increased or decreased over the years.
GENERAL FUND INFORMATION
EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT

Actual

Actual

Variance Favorable

20t3-2074

2074-20L5

(Unfavorable)

16,047,856

100 Personal Services - Salaries

(429,47]-],

16,477,327

200 Personal Svcs. - Employee Benefits

8,861,337

9,626,069

(764,732],

300 Purchased Professional Svcs.

7,735,597

2,L53,347

(4r.5,750)

400 Purchased Property Services

927,436

954,O73

132,537)

3,877,267

3,786,937

90,330

2,O34,943

1,888,326

t46,677

500 Other Purchased Services
600 Supplies

728,O48

632,982

95,066

1_,L49,284

874,746

274,538

5,237,577

4q5%,r8s s

s,838,284
42,232,091

14,749,597

15,628,535

(878,938)

1200 Special and Gifted Education

4,56L,O54

4,684,732

(123,678)

1300 Vocational Education

1,297,449

1,108,121

183,328

445,998

488,812

18,084

18,584

(soo)

21,066,182

27,928,784

(852,602)

2100 Pupil Personnel

955,952

1,047,73t

19t,779)

2200 lnstructional Staff

575,968

593,536

(r-7,658)
(81,949)

700 Property
800 Other Objects
900 Other Financing Uses
TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT

S

(600,767)
(

1,537,806)

MAJOR FUNCTION LEVEL
1OOO INSTRUCTION

1100 Regular Programs

1400 Other lnstruction Programs
1500 Non-Public School Programs
TOTAL 1000 FUNCTTON s

(42,8741

2OOO INSTRUCTION

2,423,954

2,505,903

2400 Pupil Health

354,1O2

302,707

51,395

2500 Business

577,239

6to,87L

(33,532)

2600 Operation and Maint. Plant

4,267,566

4,494,202

(226,6361

2700 Student Transportation

2,8L4,593

2,774,92t

39,672

439,O20

510,861

(71,841)

32,234

31,486

748

t2,440,628

t2,872,318

(431,590)

775,712

790,001

1t4,289)

18,567

22,529

(3,s62)

794,279

8 12,530

(18,2s1)

2300 Administration

2800 Central
2900 Other Support Services
TOTAL 2000 FUNCTION s
3OOO NON-I NSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

3200 Student Activities
3300 Community Services
TOTAL 3OOO FUNCTION

S

4OOO NON.I NSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

4100 Site Acq & lmprov

1,045

1,045

1,045

1,045

4600 Community Services
TOTAL 4000 FUNCTION s
5OOO OTHER FINANCING USES

(4,s49)

5100 Debt Service

3,242,151

3,246,700

5200 Fund Transfers

3,050,000

3,37t,759

l32t,tsgl

6,292,751

6,678,459

(326,308)

40,594,285

42,232,09L

(1,537,805)

5900 Budgetary Reserve
TOTAL 5000 FUNCTION s

GENERAL FUND TOTALS
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Ringgold School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2015

During the 2014-2015 school year, Ringgold School District implemented the newly
aligned Common Core curriculum under the guidance of the Director of Curriculum,
Mrs. Lenni Nedley. Additionally, Literacy Coaches were employed at Ringgold
Elementary School North (RESN), Ringgold Elementary School South (RESS), and
Ringgold Middle School (RMS). These coaches received training through the
Pennsylvania Literacy Network and will be providing professional development to the
staff in those buildings.

The District administered the Accountability Block Grant which supported Full Day
Kindergarten teachers and the Literacy Coaches. The decision was made to continue
supporting early education because the district realizes the importance of a good
foundation. In the future, the district plans to implement a district wide Pre-K program.
In support of 2l't century technology skill acquisition, a greater emphasis was placed on
the teaching of science and technology at all levels. The District continues to support
middle school STEM classes in grades 6'n, J'h, and 8th. Furthermore, an emphasis on
scientific reasoning, hands on learning, and career relevance were stressed at all levels.
Additionally, each ninth grade student received a Chromebook to initiate a one to one
technology program. The program will continue with new ninth grade students receiving
Chromebooks each year.

As per the state of Pennsylvania, the Ringgold School District participates in state wide
standardized testing. For this year, the state of Pennsylvania petitioned the Federal
government for a waiver for the Pennsylvania School Profile scores for elementary and
middle school. As a result only Ringgold High School (RHS) received a Pennsylvania
School Profile score. Ringgold High School's score was 78.1, which is an improvement
of 8.1 points.
The funggold School District implemented strategies to meet the increased requirements
for improving school achievement. For the 2014-15 school year, diagnostic testing was
emphasized at the High School level in order to provide data for improving teacher
instruction and class assessments. In comparison, K-8 students experienced a greater
emphasis upon formative assessment. In conjunction with assessments, teachers initiated
project based leaming at all levels to make lessons more relevant.

Finally, the District continues to develop Cyber courses at the High School and Middle
School levels. Through the purchase of curriculum and site licenses from Edgenuity, the
high school and middle school teachers customized the courses to meet our needs. These
courses were used in the RAMS (altemative education) programs at both the Middle and
High School. Students at these levels were also offered the Cyber option to complete as
credit recovery or to take a new class not offered in the traditional curriculum.

xi

During the 2014-2015 school year Ringgold School District continued to invest in
building programs throughout the District. In the summer/fall 2014 a project costing
approximately $2 million dollars was completed at RHS. The project included
replacement of the HVAC control system, all exterior doors and main lobby restroom
restorations. Through completion of the project the District achieved efficiencies. The
District was able to complete the project without borrowing funds.
In late spring 2015 a $9.9 million dollar addition/renovation project began at RESN. The
project consists of the addition of six classrooms, a new cooking/kitchen area and
renovations to the existing building to include, but not limited to, a new heating and air
conditioning system, new windows, new floor tile and painting. The District issued a
new bond to fund the RESN project. The District also continued with the planning of a
new middle school at the high school site. The project is still in the schematic design
phase with an estimated bid date of February 2016 and completion of summer 2017.

During the 2014-2015 school year the District had two bond refundings and two new
money bond issues. The refundings saved the District over $1.3 million dollars. The
new bond issues were for the new middle school project and $9.9 million for the RESN
project.
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Basic Financial Statements

RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

1t,397,224

lnvestments

27,776,528

Business-Type

Total

Activities

S

3s2,711
1,350,463

s

t,t82,489

Taxes Receivable (Net)

lnternal Balances
Due from Other Governments
Other Receivables
nventories
Long Term Receivables
lnvestment in Joint Venture
Capital Assets (net)

\r42,489

(318,181)

318,181

737,946

27,530

765,476
55,770
18,580

55,770
18,580

I

4,427,556

4,427,556

TOTAL ASSETS

11,749,935

29,t26,99t

2,085,585
39,248,712

2]3,tt2

86,s93,629

2,280,577

2,085,585
39,461,824

88,874,206

DEFERRED OUTFTOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension Related
Deferred Refunding Loss
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES

lntergovernmental Payables
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
lnterest Payable
Other Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities:
Portions Due or Payable Within One Year:
Bonds Payable - Net of Related Premiums/Discounts
Portions Due or Payable After One Year:
Bonds Payable - Net of Related Premiums/Discounts
Pension Liability
Long-term Portion of Compensated Absences
OPEB Obligation
Total Liabilities

s
s

3,267,39L
275,496

3,267,391
275,496

3,542,847

3,542,887

90,136,s16

2s1,984
2,135,309
1,610,059
L,055,363

s

2,28O,s77

S
s

s

92,4L7,o93

2s1,984

2,223,4t1

88,102

1,610,059
1,055,363

482,8t7

482,4t7
10,828

50,656

61,444

2,489,t26

2,489,t26

51,66].,274
49,120,000

5t,661.,274
49,120,000
700,099

700,099
I,OL8,475

Ito,575,t62

98,930

I,OL8,475
t1o,674,o92

18,580
18,580

4,105,000
18,580
4,123,580

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

4,105,000

Pension Related
Unearned Revenue

4,105,000

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources
NET POSITION

Net lnvestment in CapitalAssets

a,838,977

Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Self lnsured Retirement Obligations

4,036,296

9,052,089

4,036,296
1,450,463

1,450,463

9,tsg,473

9,tsg,473

Other Reserves
U nrestricted

145,s78,392l.
(24,543,6461

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

2t3,tL2

s

90,136,s16

s

499,492

(45,078,900)

2,t63,067

|.22,38O,s79l.

2,28O,s77

s

92,4t7,093

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEM ENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net (Expense) Revenue

Program Revenues
Operati ng
Grants and
Charges
Expe nses

Governmental Activities
Depreciation - Unallocated

S

s59,os 2

5,778,754

8,803

30s,902
266,L93
r,736,689
70,L41

201,s80

4,206,432
2,928,572
794,640
22,529

45,511

s

(s6e,0s2)

(

8,947

37,351,409

(r,s26,978\
(3,562,0 13)
(3,738,6s9)
(1,19 1,883)
(578,988)

1,191,883)
(578,988)
(

Total Business Type Activities
Total Government

s

(s59,0s2)
(L6,360,272],

13,s82)

(

13,s82)

.t,22s,097],

(7,225,0971,

i.28,966,4541

(28,966,4641

255,894

8,129,051

t,596,427

367,436

7,210,226

(18,765)

(

L,596,427

367,436

t,270,226

(18,76s)

(18,76s)

$

623,330

Business Type Activities

Food Service
Retirement Obligations

ness-type

(3,738,6s9)

793,470

7,478,567

i

Activities

116,360,2121
.L,s26,978],
(3,652,013)

329,555

1,856,533
3,957,915

Total Governmenta I Activities

s

s

21,587,169

nstruction
lnstructional Student Support
Administrative and Financial Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Student Activities
Community Services
lnterest on Long-Term Debt
I

Bus

Activities

Contributions

for Services

38,e47,836

5

e,339,2t7

.28,s66,464], s

(18,76s)

s

18,75s)

(.28,985,2791

General Revenues, Special and Extraordinary ltems and Transfers
Taxes

Grants, Subsidies and Contributions, Unrestricted

lnvestment Earnings

203,s24

02r,7sgl-

2,048,858

(29,26s,6L61

Net Position - Beginning - Restated

5

.24,s43,646l,

4,836,779

L74,209

4,727,970

Change in Net Position

33,821,408

132,97 4

33,688,434

Total General Revenues, Special and Extraordinary ltems and Transfers

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

13,s75,909
19,010

159
11,056

L92,468

Miscellaneous lncome
Transfers Between Governmental and Business Type Activities

Net Position - Ending

15,519,764
4,so2,20L

75,s79,764
4,502,2O7
13,576,909
18,851

Property Taxes
Other Taxes

5

2,t63,067

127,276,7s8],

5

Q2,380,s79],
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RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE 5HEET. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

luNE 30,2015

Governmental Funds
General Fund

Debt Service

Construction

Fund

Fund

ASSETS

Taxes Receivable (Net)
Due From Other Funds

lntergovernmental Receivables
Other Receivables (Net)
TOTAL ASSETS

9,759,473

811,550
257,489
4,934
737,946
55,488

S

11,881,s82

s

2,818,181

L7,397,224
27,776,528
257,489
2,504,934
737,946

1.,383,159
17,805,395

1.0,014,055

Cash and Cash equivalents
lnvestments (At Fair Value)

2,500,000

S

9,1s9,473

s

55,488

21,688,ss4

5

42,729,609

s

2,822,833
25L,984

TIABITITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BAI-ANCES

bilities:
to Other Funds
lntergovernmental Paya bles
Lia

Due

s

25L,984
t,715,227

Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Other Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

4,652
420,O82

2,135,309
1,510,059
1,055,353
50,555

424,734

7,926,204

2L,263,820

2t,263,820

1,510,059
1,055,363
50,556

7,50L,470

Deferred lnflows of Resources:
Unearned Revenue

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources
Fund Balances:

Committed to:

PSERS

Unassigned:

4,380,1L2

Total Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABITITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BAI.ANCES

269,446

269,446
2,178,740
1,93L,926

Athletics

1sl15

9,159,473

9,t59,473

Debt Service
Capital Projects
Assigned to:

S

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

11,881,s82 5

2,t78,740
1,,93r,926
9,L59,473

9,rs9,473

::s

21,263,820

34,803,405

21,688,ss4 5

42,729,609
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RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

tuNE 30, 2015

s

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

34,803,40s

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
are not reported as assets in governmental funds. The cost of the assets is

569,709,946 and the accumulated depreciation is

530,461,234.

39'248,712

Net lnvestments in Joint Ventures are not financial resources and are not
2,085,585

reported as assets in the governmental funds.
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

(54,150,400)

Long-term liabilities, including post retirement liabilities, are not due and
payable in the current period and are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

1L,7t8,574].

Long-term state subsidies receivable on future principal debt payments on
long-term bonds payable are not assets in the funds.

4,427,556

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is not due and payable in the
current period and is not reported as a liability in the funds.

1482,817l.

Deferred Gains and Losses on Refunding of Bonds are not reported in the
governmental funds. They constitute deferred inflows and deferred outflows
of resources on the Statement of Net Position.

275,496

Net Pension Obligations are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows and inflows

of

resources related

to

(49,120'000)

penslons are

applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension of 53,267,391
=53,267,397 deferred outflow of 2ol4/2o75 emp|oyer
contributions related to pensions.
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

3'267,391
(4,105,000)

Delinquent property taxes receivable will be collected, but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditure, and therefore are
deferred in the funds.
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

925,000

s

(24,s43,646)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Governmental Funds
Debt Service

Construction

Fund

Fund

General
Revenues
Local Sources

5

Taxes

Other Local Revenues

5

20,o21,96s
90L,713
804,685
42,189,380

Expenditures
lnstruction
Support Services
Operation Of Non-lnstructional Services
Capital Outlay

2L,928,784
12,872,3L8
812,530

Debt Service
Principal and lnterest

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

188,954

534,513

30,597

1218,726)

(

2,632,696

27,928,784
13,595,795
8L2,530
2,632,695

3,767,209

3,277,297
42,247,102
(4e,194\

3,160,115)

16,210,000
19,010,000
( 1s,855,688)
(379,397)

19,010,000
(15,855,588)
( 150,197)

Bond Premium

.229,200l,

938,964

2t,3to,205

38,681
84,285
3,263,427
(3,38s,185)
18,915,122

720,838

18,150,089

L8,925,928

8,438,63s

3,1L3,731

t5,877,477

9,159,473

2r,263,820

9,276

29,405

750,000

2,500,000

84,285

Sale of Fixed Assets

t3,427

lnterfund Transfers ln
lnterfund Transfers (out)
Total Other Financing Sources & (Uses)

(3,37L,7591
(3,274,0471
55,001
4,325,t17

Net Change in Fund Balances

1,20L4

$

4,380,112

s

zo,ozt,gas
910,241
20,46L,0L6
804,586
42,197,908

16,210,000

Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Agents
Bond Discount (Net)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

7,093

2t9,561

Refunding Bond Proceeds
Bond Proceeds

Fund Balances - June 30, 2015

1,435

3,246,70O

Other Financing Sources & (Uses)

JulY

7,093

38,860,33 2

3,329,048

Over Expenditures

-

1,435

20,461,,076

State Sources
Federal Sources
Total Revenues

Fund Balances

Totals

173,427)

S

34,803,405

5

RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

78,925,928

Depreciation Expense

(1,637,840)

Capital outlays are reported governmental funds as expenditures. ln the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
3346,77L

depreciation expense.

(139,397)

Loss on Disposition of Fixed Assets

Long-term receivable adjustment for amounts received from the state in debt service
52,342

subsidies that are applicable to principal payments made.

lnterest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount
reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as the interest
accrues regardless of when it is due. The additional interest reported in the
statement of activities is the result of accrued interest payable and the accretment of
(388,501)

interest on capital appreciation bonds.
Bond Premiums and Discounts

340,7L6

Bond Premium and Discount Amortization

(199,326)

ln the statement of activities compensated absences and other post employment
benefits are measured by the amounts earned during the year. ln the governmental
(321,035)

funds, these items are measured by the amounts paid.
Repayment of bond and loan principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term debt in the statement of net position.

2,496,525

Bonds issued and refunded during the current year are reported in the governmental

funds as revenues and expenditures. These items are not reported in the statement
of activities. They constitute long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

(

19,650,000)

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee
contributions is reported as pension expense
District pension contributions
Cost of benefits earned net of employee contributions

3,267,397
(1,687,000)

1,580,391

Deferred Loss on Refunding of Bonds

296,688

Amortlzation of Deferred Refunding Gains and Losses on Refunding of Bonds

lzL,ts2l

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities

s

4,72t,97O

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET VS ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Original
Budget

Final

Budget

Actual
(budgetary basis)

Over
(Under)
Budget - Final

Revenues
Local Sources

s

Taxes

Other Local Revenues
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

1e,1s9,s01

s

499,120
20,303,595
897,560
40,859,777

19,1s9,s01
499,120
20,303,s96
897,560
40,859,777

s

20,021,95s
90L,713
20,45t,01.6
804,686
42,189,380

5

862,464
402,593

t57,420
(s2,874l.

7,329,603

Expenditures
nstruction
I

15,753,468
4,825,955
1,289,378
653,578

Regular Programs
Special Programs

Vocational Education
Other lnstructional Programs
Nonpublic School Programs
Total lnstruction
Support Services

15,628,408

4,684,728
7,708,120
488,811

15,628,53s
4,684,732

t27

L,708,L2\

1

488,812

1

4

18,584

18,584

22,522,379

21,928,657

2t,928,784

Pupil Personnel

1,1t2,554

7,047,732

7,047,73t

(1)

lnstructional Staff
Administration
Pupil l.lealth

650,002
2,670,062
363,202
643,452
4,380,O32

595,188
2,505,900
302,706
612,322
4,494,204
2,774,922
510,850

593,636
2,50s,903
302,707

(1,ss2)

6to,871

(1,4s1)
(2)
(1)

31,486

4,494,202
2,774,92L
510,861
31,485

72,87s,320

L2,872,3t8

(3,002)

790,294
22,529
812,823

790,001
22,529
812,530

(2e3)

Business

Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services
Student Transportation Services
Central
Other Support Services
Total Support Services
Operation of Non-lnstructional Services
Student Activities
Community Services
Total Non-lnstructional Services

2,881.,O74

s30,245
3s,000
L3,26s,633
803,755
13,000
815,765

Debt Service
Principal and lnterest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

3,605,000
40,209,777

3,246,700
38,863,494

650,000

1,995,283

100,000

100,000
(2,096,283)

133

3
1

1

(2e3)

3,246,700
38,860,332

3,329,048

(3,152)

t,332,765

Other Financing Sources & (Uses)
84,28s

Sales of Assets

lnterfund Transfers ln
I

(7s0,000)
(6s0,000)

nterfund Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing Sources & (Uses)

(1,996,283)

-

July

L,2014

Fund Balance - June 30, 2015

(3,37t,7ssl.
13,274,047],
55,001

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance

t3,427

s

4,325,711

4,325,lr]-

4,325,LLl

4,32s,t11 s

4,32s,7L7

4,380,L72

84,245
(86,s73)
(1,27s,476\
1t,277,764],
55,001

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION . PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Service
Fund

Retirement

Food

Obligations Fund

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments

5

nve nto

ri

s
1,350,463
100,000

218,18L
27,530
18,580

Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
I

3s2,7]-1,

es

1,,450,463

617,O02

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Food Service Equipment (Net of Depreciation)
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

273,172
273,772

s

830,114

s

88,102

1.,450,463

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities
Total Cu rrent Liabilities

s

10,828

98,930

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

18,580
18,580

Unearned Revenue
Total Deferred lnflows of Resources
NET POSITION

2L3,112

Net lnvestment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Self lnsu red Retirement Obligations
Un

7,450,463
499,492

restricted

712,604

Total Net Position
TOTAT LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POS]TION

$

sao,1ra

1,450,463

s

1,4s0,453

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RI NGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2015

Retirement
Obligations Fund

Food
Service

Operating Revenues
Food Service Revenue

s

367,436

s

367,436

Total Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses

486,592

Personal Services - Salaries
Personal Services - Benefits
Other Pu rchased Services
Su pplies
Other Objects
Depreciation Expense

201,886

703,490
137,468
25,982
41,009
1,596,427

Total Operating Expenses

(1,228,9971

Operating lncome (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Operating Subsidies

737,457

State Subsidies
Federal Subsidies
Lunch and Breakfast Subsidies
Value of Donated Commodities Received
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures
Earnings on lnvestments

992,998
79,777
11,056
159

159

1,221,282

Total Nonoperating Revenue and Expense
lncome (Loss) Before Transfers

(7,709tl

Contributions and Transfers
Transfers from Other Funds

2t,759

100,000

Change in Net Position

14,050

100,L59

698,554

1,350,304

Net Position - July 1,201,4
Net Position - June 30, 2015

5

712,604

159

s

1,4s0,463

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

9

RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2015

Retirement
Obligations Funds

Food
Service
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

381,856
(674,s411
(774,572)
(7,067,263)

s

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Grants and Subsidies Received for Non-Operating Activities

].37,332
986,820
11,056
21,759
7,756,967

State Subsidies
Federal Subsidies
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures
Transfer from Other Funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities:
Earning on lnvestments
Withdrawals (Purchases of) from lnvestment Pools
Net Cash Provided (Used) by lnvesting Activities

159

(1ss)

89,704

Net lncrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

263,OO7

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End

352 71r

ofYear

Reconciliation of Operating lncome (Lossl to Net Cash Used
By Operating Activities

1t,228,9971 s

Operating lncome (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome (Loss) to Net
Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Donated Commodities Used
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
lnventories
Due to/Due From Other Funds
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenues
Other Current Liabilities
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

41,009
79,777

17,066
(s6)
13,931

t2,591.
56
(2,6461
767,724

s

(1,067,263)

Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities:
During the year, the District receivedS79,777 of food commodities from the U.S. Department of Agriculture.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Agency Funds

Student
Activities

Bond
Escrow

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

89,148

245,282

89,'1,48

245,282

LIABILITIES

Due to Other Funds
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

5

s

282

89,149
89,148

245,000

89,148

245,282

245,282

NET POSITION
U n restricted
Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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Ringgold School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 20L5
Note L - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies
The Ringgold School District (the "School District") provides public education to residents of the
Boroughs of Donora, Finleyville and New Eagle, the Townships of Carroll, Nottingham and Union and
the City of Monongahela, Pennsylvania from its two elementary centers, middle school and high
school.

A. Reporting Entity

A reporting entity is composed of the

primary government, component units, and other
organizations that are included to insure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary
government of the School District consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are
not legally separate from the School District. For Ringgold School District, this includes general
operations, food service, and student related activities of the School District.

ln evaluating the School District as a primary government in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 6L, 'The Financial Reporting Entity,"
management has addressed all potential component units. Consistent with this Statement, the
criteria used by the School District to evaluate possible inclusion of related entities within its
reporting entity are financial accountability and the nature and significance of the relationship.
Upon review of this criteria, the School District determined that there were no potential component
units that met the criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity.
The School District is, however, a participant in a jointly governed organization: Mon Valley Career
& Technology Center (Vo-Tech). See Note 8 for details on operating information about this entity.
B. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of Ringgold School District have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
Following are the more significant of the School District's accounting policies.
The School District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide
a more detailed level of financial information.
1. Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the School
District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government,
72

except for fiduciary funds. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. The statements distinguish between those activities of the School District that are
governmental in nature and those that are considered business-type activities. Governmental

activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged
to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and businesstype activities of the School District at fiscal year end. The statement of activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the
School District's governmental activities and business-type activity. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a service program or department and, therefore, clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the School District, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the School District.
ln the process of aggregating data for the statement of net position and the statement of activities,
some amounts that are reported as interfund activity and balances are eliminated.

2. Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide information about the School District's funds, including the
fiduciary funds. Separate statement for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise
funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as
subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
C. Fund Accounting

The School District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is
defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three
categories of funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.
1. Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the School District
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmentalfunds according to
the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from
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which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported
as fund balance.
The General Fund, the Construction Fund, and the Debt Service Fund are the School District's major

governmentalfunds.
General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School District. lt is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Normal debt service payments for general long-term debt are recorded in the General Fund by the
School District.
Construction Fund -The Construction Fund is the School District's capital projects fund and capital
reserve fund. The capital projects fund accounts for funds which are typically borrowed or
transferred from the general fund and used for major capital improvements. The Capital Reserve
Fund is a Section 2932 Capital Reserve Fund set up in accordance with the Pennsylvania School
Code. The purpose of the fund is to set aside excess monies available in the General Fund for future
use in the area of capital outlay and improvements.
Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Funds account for resources accumulated to provide for payment
of general long-term debt principal and interest.
2. Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net
position, financial position, and cash flows. The following are the School District's proprietary funds:
Enterprise Fund
The Enterprise Fund may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external
users for goods or services.
Food Seruice

The Food Service Fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service operations
of the School District. This fund is the School District's only enterprise fund and it is reported as a
major fund.

!nternal Service Fund
The lnternal Service Funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services.

nt O b I ig otions F u nd
The Retirement Obligations Fund was established by the School District to account for funds
accumulated to provide for payment of post retirement insurance benefits and retirement
Reti re m

e

incentives.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
L4

principal operating revenues of the School District's enterprise fund are food service charges.
Operating expenses for the School District's enterprise fund include food production costs, supplies,
administrative costs, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues or expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
3. Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund
category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private
purpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the School
District under a trust agreement for individuals, private organizations, or other governments and
are not available to support the School District's own programs. Agency funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The
School District's agency fund accounts for various student-managed activities.
Agency Funds
Student Activity Fund - This fund is utilized to account for monies authorized by Section 511 of the

Public School Code of 1949 for student activities, publications and organizations. These
organizations exist with the explicit approval of and are subject to revocation by the Board.
Bond Escrow Fund -This fund is utilized to account for unclaimed bond proceeds that are due back
to the bondholders.
Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations.
D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting
1. Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes,
grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized
in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations
is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
2. Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The School District considers all revenues reported in the governmental
funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days after year-end. The statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reflects the sources (i.e. revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial
resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements,
15

therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship
between the government-wide statements and the fund financial statements for governmental
funds.

3. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially
equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified
accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and
become available. Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafterto be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal
year. Forthe School District, available means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscalyear
end.
Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned.
Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements,
which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is
first permitted; matching requirements, in which the School District must provide local resources to
be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both measurable
and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an advance, income taxes, grants,
interest, tuition, and student fees.
4. Unearned Revenues
Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied.
Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 20L5, but which were
levied to finance fiscal year 2016 operations, are recorded as unearned revenue. Grants and
entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as unearned
reven ue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the
available period are reported as unearned revenue.
5. Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting
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period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmentalfunds.
E.

as

Budgetary Process

Generally accepted accounting principles serve as the budgetary basis of accounting. ln accordance

with state law, an annual budget prepared by function and object is formally adopted for the
General Fund. The School District does not formally adopt budgets for other funds.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts on the budgetary statements reflect the
amounts on the budget when the original appropriations were adopted.

The appropriation resolution is subject to budget transfer amendments between functions, as
allowed by the Public School Code, throughout the year with the restriction that appropriations
cannot exceed estimated resources. The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the
budgetary financial statement reflects the first appropriation resolution for the general fund that
covered the entire fiscal year. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts represent the
final appropriation and include budget transfer amendments as passed by the Board during the
fiscal year. The measurement level of control over expenditures for all budgeted funds is the
surplus or deficit of the fund as a whole.
The School District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

4i

- prior to May of the preceding fiscal year, the School District prepares a budget for the next
succeeding fiscal year beginning July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.
*: - n meeting of the Board of School Directors is then called for the purpose of adopting the
proposed budget. The meeting may only be held after 30 days of public notification.
S - Prior to July 1-, the Board of School Directors legally enacts the budget through passage of a
resolution.
'# - fne budget must be filed with the Pennsylvania Department of Education by July 31 of the
fiscal year.
F. Encumbrances

Encumbrances at year-end are reported in the fund financial statements as reservations of fund
balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities, but serve as authorization for
expenditures in the subsequent year. As of June 30, 2015, the School District has no encumbrances.
G. Cash and lnvestments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund considers all highly liquid
investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased and pooled funds of
investments subject to daily withdrawal to be cash equivalents.
Custodial Credit Risk - Under Section 44O.1 of the Public School Code of 7949, as amended, the
School District is permitted to invest funds consistent with sound business practices in the following
types of investments, certain money market mutual funds, and deposit accounts:
17

Obligations of (a) the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by
the full faith and credit of the United States of America, (b) the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or
any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, or (c) any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its
agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.

Act 20, a Pennsylvania law enacted in June of 1995, expands the allowable investment vehicles to
include certain money market mutual funds rated as "AAA" whose investments are limited to those
mentioned in the previous paragraph.
Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation to the extent that such accounts are so insured and, for any
amounts above the insured maximum, provided that approved collateral as provided by law
therefore shall be pledged by the depository. Due to higher cash flows at certain times during the
year and the School District's investments in certificates of deposit, its demand deposit balances
increase significantly. As a result, the amounts collateralized with pooled deposit funds not held in
the School District's name at those times were substantially higher than at year-end.

lnterest Rate Risk - The School District does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk
one issue.

-

The School District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any

Method to Estimate Fair Value - lnvestments are stated at fair market value.
Deposits

Below is a summary of the School District's deposits which are insured by the Federal Depository
lnsurance Company, and those which are not insured or collateralized in the School District's name,
but collateralized in accordance with Act 72 of the Pennsylvania State Legislature, which requires
the financial institution to pool collateral for all government deposits and have the collateral held by
an approved custodian in the institution's name.

FDIC lnsured
Cash and Deposits

S

506,262

Pooled
Collateral

512,048,389

Bank Balance

S

12,s54,6s1

Carrying
Amount

S 12,084,365

lnvestments
The investments of the District have been categorized to indicate the level of risk assumed by the
District.
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The District's investments at June 30, 20L5 consist of:
Cost

Fair Value

Pennsylvania Local Government lnvestment Trust
Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund

5

27,116,521
1.,350,464

5

27,776,521
1,350,464

Total

5

29,126,991

5

29,126,991

The Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund and the Pennsylvania Local Government
lnvestment Trust are investment pools. The fair value of the investment pool is the same as the
value of the pool shares owned. Although the pools seek to maintain the net assets value of S1 per
share, there can be no guarantee that the net asset values will not vary from this price.

For PSDLAF, internal oversight resides with a Board of Trustees consisting of local school board
members, school business officials and the Executive Directors of PASBO and PSBA. For outside
oversight, the Fund is monitored on a weekly basis by Standard & Poor's, which has rated PSDLAF
AAAm, the highest rating available for a money market fund.
For PLGIT, regulatory oversight resides with the Board of Trustees and Trust Administration. The
participants of the trust annually select an independent auditing firm to examine, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The Trust is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Contacts with prospective investors
relating to the shares of the pool are conducted through the lnvestment Adviser's wholly owned
subsidiary, PFMAM, lnc., member NASD.
H. Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable consist of delinquent real estate taxes due atJune 30, 2075,less an allowance for
the amount of these delinquencies not expected to be collected within the next fiscal year.

l. lnterfund Receivables/Payables
During the course of operations, transactions sometime occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables, to the extent they exist, are
classified as "Due from Other Funds" or "Due to Other Funds" on the balance sheet.

lnventories
On government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at cost on a first-in, first-out
basis, and are expensed when used.

J.

lnventories in governmental funds are stated at cost bythe first-in, first-out method. The purchase
method is used to accountfor inventories. Underthe purchase method, inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased; however, an estimated value of inventories is reported as an asset in
the General Fund. The inventories in the General Fund are equally offset by a fund balance reserve,
which indicates they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though they are a
component of net current assets. The General Fund did not have a material inventory balance as of
June 30, 201,5.
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A physical inventory of the Food Service Fund food and supplies was taken as of June 30, 2015. The
inventory consisted of government donated commodities (valued using USDA values) using the firstin, first-out (FIFO) method. Any unused commodities donated by the federal government at June
30, 2015 are reported as unearned revenue.
K. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, (e.g., roads,
sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements.
The School District has not prepared detailed fixed asset registers as required by generally accepted
accounting principles. Fixed asset costs shown in the financial statements are estimated based
upon available historical records. Depreciation has been estimated based upon the useful lives of
the various asset categories and the period of time elapsed since the asset was placed into service.
It is the intent of the School District to complete a project to properly record all assets.
L. Long-Term Liabilities

ln the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position. ln the fund financial
statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expend itures.

M. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
N. Fund Balances

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement #54, Fund Bolonce
Reporting ond Governmentol Fund Type Definitions, the School District classifies governmental fund
balances as follows:

ln accordance with

Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not
spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. All
amounts reported as nonspendable at June 30, 2OL5 by the School District are
nonspendable in form.
Restricted - includes amounts that are restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.
Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed
fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of School
Directors, the District's highest level of decision making authority. Commitments may be
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modified

or

rescinded only through resolutions approved by

the Board of

School

Directors.
Assigned - includes amounts that the School District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under
the School District's established policy, amounts may be assigned by the Director of
Operations and Financial Services of the School District.
Unassigned - includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted,
committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the School District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available,
the School District considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board of School Directors has
provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.
Fund balances in the School District's general fund total 54,380,112, composed of amounts assigned
for athletics and 1,5ltG PSERS liabilities of 5269,446 and 52,778,740, respectively, and unassigned
amounts of 51,931,926. ln addition,59,L59,473 is committed for the debt service fund and
52t,263,820 is committed for the construction fund.
O. Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of management and
are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions
occurred during the fiscal year.

Note 2 - Real Estate and Unearned Revenue
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1't of the year following levy.
Taxes are levied on July 1. The School District bills and collects its own property taxes through
locally elected tax collectors. Collection of delinquent property taxes is handled by Portnoff Law
Associates. The tax levy for fiscal 2015 was based on assessed values on January 1', 2OI4 of
51.45,3L5,972. The School District tax rate for the year ended June 30, 2015 was 723.O mills as
levied by the School Board.
Taxes may be paid at a 2% discount until September 30th, at face until November 30th, and at a 1O%

penalty until the lien date. The following is a schedule of real estate tax collections for the
2OL4/2075 schoolyear.
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Nottingham

Union

Adiusted

valuat-bn s

Times:

Mileage

Tax At

Face

Collections
Percent

Collected

27,800,788
0.12300

s

36,7s7,559 s

0.12300

8,527,279
0 12300

Donora
Borough

Finlewille
Borough

New Iagle

brough

Township

s

2,203,s03
0.12300

s

77,152,162
0

CitY

ot

Monongahe

s

12300

Carroll

a

77,719,322
0

Township

s

12300

35,618,345
0

s

12300

14s,178,9s8
0 12m0

f,419,497

4,521,180

1,048,855

277,037

2,709,716

2,705,677

4,381,056

r1,42L,475

3,318,458

4,247,013

944,597

243,65L

1,803,978

7,926,022

4,770,272

16,693,991

97%

94%

a6%

9l%

9s%

96%

The School District, in accordance with GAAP, recognized the delinquent and unpaid taxes
receivable reduced by an allowance for uncollectible taxes as determined by the administration. A
portion of the net amount estimated to be collectible which was measurable and available within 60
days was recognized as revenue and the balance deferred in the fund financial statements. This
balance, net of allowances , is 5257,489.
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Note 3 - Changes in Capita! Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 20i.5 was as follows:
Ending

Beginning

Additions

Bala nce

Retirements

Balance

Governme ntal Activities
Non-Deprecia ble Assets:
1,,428,226

Construction i n Progress

s

1,910,415

S

S

Depreciable Assets:
3,010,617

Land lmprovements

749,006

55,846,165

Buildings

Equipment
Totals at historical cost

(246,415)

109,585

8,334,386

611,764

68,6L9,455

3,386,771

3,338,641
2,873,848

(1,545,316)

55,049,856

(2,296,280)

69,709,946

(504,549)

8,447,601

Less:
Accu mulated Depreciation

Land lmprovements
Buildings

Equipment
Total accu mulated depreciation

{.2,431.,9211

l52,MLl

242,537

(2,241,8251

(22,316,074l'

(971.,6281

1,459,195

(21,828,507)

.6,232,2821
(30,980,277)

1613,771],

455,151

(6,390,902)

(1,637,840)

2,156,883

(30,461,234)

Governmental activities capital
37,639,778

assets, net

Busi ness-type

s

1,748,931

s

(139,397)

39,248,712

Activities

Depreciable Assets:

5

Equipment

for:

(789,6s1)
(789,651)

Equipment
Total accu mulated depreciation
Business-type activities ca pital
asset, net

S

zsq,nt

t,oqzltz
1,043,772

1,043,112

Totals at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation

S

1.,043,772

S

(41,009)

(830,660)

(41,009)

(830,660)

(41,009)

S

S

213,112

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:
I

nstruction

Support

Administration

538,056
4,518
107,510

Plant

129,262

Transportation

249,862

Student Activities
Unallocated-Governmenta I Fu nds
Tota I depreciation expense

39,580
569,052

1,637,840

ln the 201.4/2015 school year, building renovations and equipment purchases added 53,386,771 to
the historical cost of governmental activities. Depreciation expense for that same time period was
5t,637,84O and 541,009 for the governmental activities and business activities. Following net
disposals of S139,397, the result is a net book value increase of S1,609,534 for the governmental
activities and a net book value decrease of 541,009 for the business activities.
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Note 4 - General Long-Term Debt
Changes in the School District's long-term obligations during fiscal year 2015 were as follows:
Amounts
Beginning
Ba

Ending

Additions

lance

Reductions

Ba la

nce

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities:
Bonds, loans & leases payable
Capital lmprovement bonds

S

36,938,408

5

3s,s99,815

s

(18,066,5251

5

54,47t,699

5 2,489,126

Leases payable

Less bond

36,938,408

35,599,816

54,47L,699

179,909

394,67t

327,299

35,758,499

35,205,145

54,150,400

2,489,776

discount &

deferred amount on refunds
Total bonds, loans

and leases payable

2,489,125

Other liabilities:

680,U7
7L6,892

Compensated absences
OPEB

Obligation

Total other liabilities
Governmental activities
long-term liabilities

1,397,539

s

38,1s5,038 s

158,496

700,099

551,104

t,otg,475

709,600

7,7L8,574

3s,e14,74s

S ss,sss,gz+ 5

2,489,t26

Debt Refundings

The School District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 201,4 for the purpose of currently
refunding a portion of the outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010. The School
District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2Ot4A for the purpose of currently refunding a
portion of the outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010. The two refundings resulted
in a total savings of 51,333,115 to the School District over the life of the issuances.
Debt lssuonces
The School District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2014AA for the payment of the costs
of acquiring and constructing additions, alterations and renovations which constitute the Middle
School building project, including reimbursement of amounts previously expended in respect of the
project. The School District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2015 for the payment of the
costs of acquiring and constructing additions, alterations and renovations to Ringgold Elementary
School North and to the Middle School building project, including reimbursement of amounts
previously expended in respect of the project.

General Obligotion Bonds used for Copital lmprovements
General Obligation Bonds consist of the following:
Capital Appreciation Bonds, Series of 1990 with rates ranging fromT.O%oto7.25% and final payment
due in 2OL7. The current accreted value as of June 30,2015 is54,442,229.
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General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series of 2OO2 consisting of current interest and capital
appreciation bonds with rates ranging from 2.0% lo 4.L5% and final payment due in ZOZL. The
current accreted value as of June 30, 2015 is 5413,023
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2O\O, variable rate interest from 2.O% to 4.O5% with final
payment due in 2029. These bonds were refunded during 2Ot4/2O15 with the issuance of the
Series of 2OL4 and Series of 2014A Bonds.
General Obligation Bonds, Series
payment due in 2021.

of 20L1, variable rate interest from

School Building (General Obligation Secured) Bonds, Series
0.65%to2.75% with final payment due in 2026.

of

2.0%

to

201-2, variable

3.25% with final

rate interest from

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2O\2, variable rate interest from O.4OO% to 2.150% with final
payment due in 2023.
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2Ot4, variable rate interest from O.75%
payment due in 2028.

to

3.00% with final

20L4A, variable rate interest from t.OO%

to

2.55% with final

General Obligation Bonds, Series
payment due in 2024.

of

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2014AA, variable rate interest from O.5O% to 3.OO% with final
payment due in 2028.
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2015, variable rate interest from 1,.5O%
payment due in 2O3L.

to 3.50% with final

The General Fund is used to liquidate the long-term liability for post-retirement benefits and
compensated absences. The current portion of post retirement benefits is recorded as a current
liability in the general fund on the statement of net position.
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The amounts necessary to amortize outstanding bond debt for the next five years and to maturity
are:

2076
2017
2018
2019
2020
202\-2025
2026-2030
2031-2032
Total

5

S

Principal
2,489,12G
2,656,726
2,675,627
2,833,227
2,930,828
76,447,87O
1,8,784,765
5,925,000
54,743,1.69

Note5-PensionPlan
1. Summary of Significant Accounting

lnterest

5

1,274,61.2

1,280,868

!,262,064
1,2L6,844

S

Total
3,763,738
3,937,594
3,937,69L

1,,L42,278

4,O5O,O7t
4,O73,LO6

4,938,045
2,763,137
176,813
13,554,661

21,385,915
21,047,902
6,101,813
68,297,83O

Policies

Pensions

For purposes'of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public School employees' Retirement System (PSERS) and addition to/deductions
from PSERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms investments are reported at
fair value.
Generol lnformotion about the Pension Plon
Plan Description

governmental cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The
members eligible to participate in the System include all full-time public school employees, parttime hourly public school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year,
and part-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the school
year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial
report that can be obtained at www.psers.state.pa.us.
PSERS is a

Benefits Provided

provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for monthly
retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 year of credited service: (b) age 60 with
30 or more years of credited service; or (c) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. Act 120 of
2010 (Act 120) preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit reductions for
individuals who become new members on or after July 1, 2O1,'J,. Act 120 created two new
membership classes, Membership Class T-E (Class T-E) and Membership Class T-F (Class T-F). To
PSERS
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qualify for normal retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a
minimum of 3 years of service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or
greater than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of service or attain a total combination of age and
service that is equal to or greater than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of service. Benefits are
generally equal to 2% or 2.5%o, depending upon membership class, of the member's final average
salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service. For members
whose membership started prior to July 1, 2071,, after completion of five years of service, a
member's right to the defined benefits is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. For
Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right to benefits is vested after ten years of service.
Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited
service. Suchbenefitsaregenerallyequal lo2%or2.5%o,dependinguponmembershipclass,ofthe
member's final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited
service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member would
have had at normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age may apply for disability
benefits.
Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at
least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class T-E
and Class T-F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have
been effective if the member had retired on the day before death.
Contributions
Member Contributions:

Active members who joined the system prior to July 22,1983, contribute at 5.25 % (Membership
Class T-C) or at 6.50 % (Membership Class T-D) of the member's qualifying compensation.
Members who joined the system on or after July 22,1983, and who were active or inactive as of July
1.,2007, contribute at 6.25 % (Membership ClassT-C) or at 7.50 % (Membership ClassT-D) of the
member's qualifying compensation.
Members who joined the system after June 30, 2001 and before July L, 201-1 contribute at 7.50%
(automatic Membership class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class T-D
membership, the highercontribution rates began with service rendered on or afterianuary L,2OO2.
Members who joined the System after June 30,z}tt automatically contribute at the membership
Class T-E rate of 7.5O% (base rate) of the member's qualifying compensation. All new hires after
June 30, 2011 who elect Class T-F membership contribute at 103% (base rate) of the member's
qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a "shared risk"
provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership class T-E
contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.5%o and 9.5% and membership class T-F contribution rate
to fluctuate between 7O.3% and !2.3%.
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Employer Contributions:
The School District's contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was
20.50% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the
pension plan from the District were 53,267,391for the year ended June 30, 2OL5.

2.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows
lnflows of Resources related to Pensions

of Resources and Deferred

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability of 549,120,000 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 201-4, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the
System's total pension liability as of June 30, 2013 to June 30,2074. The District's proportion of the
net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer's one-year reported covered payroll as it
relates to the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30,2Ot4, the District's proportion
was 0.1241 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0018 from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2013.
For the year ended June 30, 2075, the District recognized pension expense of 54,159,000. At June
30, 2015, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows

of Resources
Net difference between projected and
actual investment earntngs
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

S

4,1o5,ooo

S

4,Lo5,ooo

3,267,391

5

3,267,391

53,267,39! reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2015. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Year Ended June 30,
20L6
2017
20L8
2019

S

1,o21,ooo
1,021_,000

1,021,000
21,000
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Actuarial assumptions
The total pension liability as of June 30,201.4 was determined by rolling forward the System's total
pension liability as of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation to June 30, 2014 using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
o
a

a

Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level % of pay
lnvestment return -7.50%, includes inflation at3.OO%
Salary increases - Effective average of 5.50%, which reflects an allowance for inflation of
3.OO%, realwage growth of t%o, and merit or seniority increases of 7.5O%
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables (male and
female) with age set back 3 years for both males and females. For disabled annuitants the
RP-2000 Combined Disabled Tables (male and female) with age set back 7 years for males
and 3 years for females

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the experience study
that was performed for the five-year period ending June 30, 2010. The recommended assumption
changes based on this experience study were adopted by the Board at its March 11, 2011 Board
meeting, and were effective beginning with the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation.
'a
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce a long-term expected rate of return by
weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by

adding expected inflation.
The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may
be amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective of achieving and
maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension.

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate

of Return

Public markets global equity

79%o

Private markets (equity)
Private real estate
Globalfixed income
U.S. long treasuries

2a%o

6.5%"

L3%o

4.7Y"

a9/o

2-OY"

3Y"

1,.4Yo

TIPS

L2%;"

L.2Y"

High yield bonds
Cash

Absolute return
Risk pa rity
M LPs/ I nfra st ru ct u re

Commodities
Financing (LIBOR)

5.O%o

61/0

L-7o/o

3%o

o.9%;o

LOY"

4.ao/"

5%o

3Yo

3.9Y"
5.3Y"

6%6

3.3%io

-9%;"

L.a%o

LOOY"
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The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real
rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 201-4.
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%o. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at
contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

rate
-l
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of .50yo, as well
as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1percentage point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50%)than the current rate.

Current
Discount

rate
7.50%

1% Decrease

6.50%
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability

s

1%
I

ncrease

8.50%

5L,27O,OO0 s 49,12O,OOO

5 38,747,OOO

Pension plan fiduciarv net position

Detailed information about PSERS' fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System's website at www. psers.state.pa. us.
2014

2075
Total payroll for the year ended
Total covered payroll

S 1G,G94,379 S
15,859,033

2013

L6,32o,477

5

t6,747,92L

16,058,848

16,306,084

Total required retirement expense

3,395,973

2,778,763

2,Ot5,432

Total actual retirement expense

3,395,973

2,719,763

2,OL5,432

Percentage of req uired contribution

Contribution percentage actuarially determined

LOO%

27.40

700%

16.93

too%
12.36
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Note 6 - Compensated Absences
The School District has made early retirement benefits available to certain employees. The benefit
is payment for unused sick days at retirement. The payable for declared retirements is recorded as
a current liability in the General Fund at the time of retirement. With respect to other employees
that do not meet the criteria established by the School District for early retirement, these
employees are not eligible to receive payment for their unused sick days at retirement. The General
Fund has been used to liquidate the accumulated liability for retirement benefits. The dollar
amounts of the benefits are as follows:

Total
680,647

June 30, 201-4 Balance
158,495

lncreases

(139,044)

Decreases

June 30, 2015 Balance

700,099

158,495
(139,044].

700,099

Note 7 - Other Post Employment Benefits

The District maintains a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The plan provides health
insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the District's health insurance plan.
Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established
and may be amended by the Board of School Directors. The Annual Required Contribution for the
year ended June 30, 20L5 was not made by the District.
Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2074, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits
was 54,282,857, all of which was unfunded. The District has set aside funds in an internal service
fund for retirement obligations totaling S1,450,463.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets (a)

711/2!J4

S

7_/t/201.2

s____c

711,12010

-o-

7-/1_/2oO8

S

s

-o-

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability AAL Entry Age (b)
S

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)

(b)-(a)

q,zqz.sst

s s,4_0_9J28
5 7 .024.893

_0,
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Annual Required Contribution. For the 2OL4/2O15 year, the District's annual required contribution
of 5522,428 was not made. The required contribution was determined as part of the July t,2OL4
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
4.OO% investment rate of return and (b) no assumed salary scale. Since the School District has
chosen not to place its annual required contribution into a restricted trust, interest expense has
accrued on the net obligation each year and is included in the net pension obligation of the School
District.

Fiscal Year

Annual
Required
Contribution

Ending

(ARC)

6/30ltt

5

6l30/12
6l30l73
6l30/L4
6130l7s
20 74/20

678,263
678,263
656,650
656,650
522,428

Percentage of
ARC Contributed
90.46%
80.77%
700.oo%
61,.98%
47.76%

Net Pension
Obligation
5 351,375
495,881
449,235
71,6,892
1,,018,475

15 Contri butio n Deto i I s

5

Annua I Required Contribution (ARC)

lnterest on NET OPEB Obligation @ 4.OO%
Annual OPEB Cost
Contributions Made
Estimated lncrease in Net OPEB Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year

522,428
28,676
551,104
(249,52L1
301,583

716,892

S

1,018,475

The following assumptions were also made:

Mortality

- The RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant

Mortality Table with generational improvement using

Scale BB.
Rates of Disablement

-

Not assumed.

Retirement - Administrators were assumed to retire at age 55 and the completion of 10 years of
service. All other personnel were assumed to retire immediately upon attainment of eligibility for
unreduced benefits under PSERS.

Maritolstotus -90% of future retirees were assumed to be married. All otherfuture retirees except
Act 93 Administrators were assumed to buy single coverage ata !5%o utilization rate.
Age of Spouse -For future retirees, the female spouse was assumed to be three years younger than
the male spouse.
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Medical lnflation-7%in the first year, gradually decreasing by 1%per year, to an ultimate rate of
c o,/

J /O.

Note 8 - Jointlv Governed Organizations
The School District is one of six member school districts of the Mon Valley Career & Technology
Center (Vo-Tech). Vo-Tech is controlled and governed by the Joint Board, which is composed of one
member from each school board of the member districts. Direct oversight of Vo-Tech's operations
is the responsibility of the Joint Committee. The School District's share of annual operating and
capital costs for Vo-Tech fluctuates based on the percentage enrollment in the school. The Mon
Valley Career & Technology Center prepares financial statements, which have been separately
audited. The audit report may be obtained by calling the business office of the School District.

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingencies
The Ringgold School District participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs.

to

program compliance audits by the grantor agencies or their
representatives. The audits of some of these programs for and including the year ended June 30,
201-5 have not yet been conducted. Accordingly, the School District's compliance with applicable
grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures
that may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the
School District expects such amounts to be immaterial.

The programs are subject

Note

1-0

- lnterfund Balances

The following interfund receivable and payable balances existed at June 30, 2015:
lnterf und Receivable
Construction Fund
Cafeteria Fund
Retirement Obligations Fund
General Fund
Total

Amounts
2,5oo,ooo

S

2L8,t8L
100,000

S

4,934

z.azz.tts

lnterfund Payable
General Fund
Construction Fund
Bond Escrow Fund

Amounts
2,818,181
4,652
282

S

5

2,823,1,Ls

The interfund receivable for the Construction Fund is the result of funds being set aside for future
capital improvements. The interfund receivable for the Retirement Obligations Fund is the result of
funds being set aside for future retirement liabilities of the School District.

33

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 201.5, the following fund level transfers were made:
Transfers from
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

Amounts

5

3,37t,7s9
73,427

S

3,385,186

Transfers to
Construction
Debt Service
Retirement Obligations
Cafeteria Fund
General Fund

Amounts
S 2,5oo,ooo
750,000
100,000
21.,759

t3,427

S

3,385,186

The transfers to the Construction and Debt Service Funds are the result of funds being set aside for
future capital improvements and debt service payments. The transfer to the Retirement Obligations
Fund is the result of funds being set aside for future retirement liabilities of the School District.

Note 11- Risk Management
The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to certain torts, thefts, damages,
catastrophic loss of assets, errors and omissions, injury to employees and natural disasters.
Ringgold School District manages most of its risk through the general fund with the purchase of
commercial insu rance coverage.

Note

-

LZ Health lnsurance Consortium
The lntermediate Unit I Health lnsurance Consortium Trust (Trust) was formed September t, \991,
to provide a program of health coverage for its subscribing school districts and vocational-technical
schools. All school districts and vocational-technical schools serviced by the lntermediate Unit I of
Fayette, Greene and Washington Counties are eligible to participate in the Trust. The Trust's
general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of its subscribers, a program
of insurance, to obtain lower costs for the coverage, to reward subscribers for lower usage of the
coverage, to establish a continuing voice with Blue Cross/Blue Shield, and to manage the Trust's
healthcare dollar most effectively.

to designate a representative to vote on the election of five trustees to
administer the Trust (collectively referred to as the "Trustee"). The Trustee shall determine the
costs of the group plan and shall fix the amount of monthly contributions due from each subscriber
to cover both the costs of the insurance and the administration of the plan. Any subscriber may
withdraw from the Trust by giving written notice to the Trustee prior to March 31't of the year they
intend to withdraw. All withdrawals will be effective as of June 30th. Subscribers currently include
twenty-five school districts, five vocational-technical schools, one Washington County alternative
Each subscriber is entitled

school and one lntermediate Unit.

Note 13 - lnvestment in Joint Venture

As disclosed in Note 8, the School District is a member school district of the Mon Valley Career &
Technology Center. During 2OIU2O72, the Technology Center issued school building authority
34

bonds with the prorated principal amounts allocated among the member school districts. This
investment by the School District in the renovation of the Technology Center is accounted for as a
joint venture. The amount shown on the statement of net position represents only amounts
invested by the School District since July t,2O'J,L.

Note l-4 - New Accounting Pronouncement
the 201,4/2015 year. This statement addresses accounting
pensions
that are provided to the employees of state and local
and financial reporting for
governmental employers through pension plans that are administered through trusts and have
certain characteristics. The application of this Statement has resulted in the School District
including a proportionate share of the PSERS unfunded liability within its financial statements. The
beginning balance of the School District's net position was restated to comply with this Statement.
GASB Statement #68 was implemented in
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Su pplementa

ry Information

RINGGOLD SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Student Activity Fund
June 30,

June 30,
2015

Reductions

Additions

2Ot4
Assets
Cash and Cash

Equivalents

S

88,883 S

203,331- S

203,066 S

89,148

S

88,883

s

203,331 s

ZO:,Ooe s

89,L48

88,883

203,337

203,066

89,148

88,883 S

203,337 S

203,066

lnvestments
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

S

s

89,148

Bond Escrow Fund
June 30,
2O!5

June 30,

2014
Assets
Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Reductions

Additions

S 195,164 S

50,118

S

5

245,282

lnvestments
Total Assets
Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

sr95,r04s50,118ss245,282
S164S118S
195,000

50,000

S 195,164 S

50,118

S
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lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
ln Accordance with Government Auditing Stondards

Ringgold School District
New Eagle, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Stondords issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Ringgold School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Ringgold School District's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 25,2075.

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Ringgold School
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Ringgold School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Ringgold School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A moterial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significont deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ringgold School District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Stondords.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Stondards in considering the School District's internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CYPHER

& CYPHER

qrrlr*&#,*
CERTIFI ED PU BLIC ACCOU NTANTS

Canonsburg, Pennsylvania
November 25,201,5
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
And on lnternal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133
Ringgold School District
New Eagle, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Ringgold School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circulor A-733 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Ringgold School District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Ringgold School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Ma no

ge

me

nt's Respo nsibi lity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.
Audito tl s Responsi bility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Ringgold School District's
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Stondords, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, ond Non-Profit Orgonizotions. Those standards
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Ringgold School District's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Ringgold School
District's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federol Programs

ln our opinion, Ringgold School District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its other major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 20L5.
Report on lnternal Control over Compliance
Management of Ringgold School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Ringgold School District's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the OMB
Circular 4-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Ringgold School District's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complionce exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A moterial weakness in internal
control over complionce is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timety basis. A significont deficiency in internal control over complionce is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the OMB Circular A--133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.
CYPHER

& CYPHER

*"4r/"r*&C*
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Canonsburg, Pennsylvania
November 25,2015
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Ringgold School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Section 1 - Summarv of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements:
Type of auditor's report issued:

i

il

iii

Unmodified

lnternal control over financial
reporting:
Material weakness(es)
identified?

No

Significant deficiencies
identified?

None reported

Noncompliance material to
financial statements noted?

No

FederalAwards:
tv.

lnternal control over major
programs:

Material weakness(es)
identified?

No

Significa nt deficiencies

None reported

identified?
V.

Type of auditor's report issued
on compliance for major
programs:

Unmodified

vi.

Any audit findings disclosed that
are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-133?

No

4t

vi

Maior Programs:

.

CFDA Number(s)

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.010
84.021
84.L73
10.553
10.555
10.559

Title l, Part A Cluster

viii.

Dollar threshold used to
distinguish between type A and
type B programs:

s300,000

tx.

Auditee qualify as low-risk
auditee?

No

Special Education Cluster (IDEA)
Child Nutrition Cluster

Section 2 - Findines Related to Financial Statements Required to Be'Reported Under
GAGAS
None.

Section 3 - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards
None.

Section 4 - Summarv of Prior Audit Findings
None.
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Ringgold School District
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the Year Ended June 30, 20L5
Note

1-

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes federal grant
activity of Ringgold School District (the "school District") under programs of the federal government
for the year ended June 30, 2O\5. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stotes, Locol Governments, ond Non-Profit
Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Ringgold
School District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net

position, or cash flows of Ringgold School District.

Note 2 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular AL22, Costs Principles for Non-profit Orgonizotions, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Note 3 - Food Distribution

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair market value of the commodities
received and disbursed. At June 30,2015, the District had food commodities totaling St8,SaO in
inventory.
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